
Agenda\Executive\7 November 2017 Page 1

Division: Corporate 

Please ask for: Rachel Whillis

Direct Tel: 01276 707319

E-Mail: democratic.services@surreyheath.gov.u
k

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Surrey Heath House
Knoll Road
Camberley

Surrey GU15 3HD
Telephone: (01276) 707100
Facsimile: (01276) 707177

DX: 32722 Camberley
Web Site: www.surreyheath.gov.uk

Friday, 27 October 2017
To: The Members of the EXECUTIVE

(Councillors: Moira Gibson (Chairman), Richard Brooks, Mrs Vivienne Chapman, 
Colin Dougan, Craig Fennell, Josephine Hawkins, Alan McClafferty and 
Charlotte Morley)

Dear Councillor,

A meeting of the EXECUTIVE will be held at Surrey Heath House on Tuesday, 7 November 
2017 at 6.00 pm.  The agenda will be set out as below.

Please note that this meeting will be recorded.

Yours sincerely

Karen Whelan

Chief Executive

AGENDA
Pages

Part 1 
(Public)

1. Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes  

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 
2017 (copy attached).

3 - 6

3. Declarations of Interest  

Members are invited to declare any interests they may have with 
respect to matters which are to be considered at this meeting.  
Members who consider they may have an interest are invited to 
consult the Monitoring Officer or the Democratic Services Officer prior 
to the meeting.

4. Questions by Members  

Public Document Pack



Agenda\Executive\7 November 2017 Page 2

The Leader and Portfolio Holders to receive and respond to questions 
from Members on any matter which relates to an Executive function in 
accordance with Part 4 of the Constitution, Section B Executive 
Procedure Rules, Paragraph 16.

5. Mid-Year Performance Report  7 - 22

6. Allotment Sand and Gravel Charity – Funding Request – 
Playground at Princess Royal Barracks, Alma Gardens, Deepcut  

23 - 26

7. Response to the DCLG consultation on Planning for the Right 
Homes in the Right Places  

27 - 42

8. Annual Report on the Treasury Management Service and Actual 
Prudential Indicators for 2016/17  

43 - 62

9. Exclusion of Press and Public  63 - 64

Part 2 
(Exempt)

10. Performance of the Major Property Acquisitions  65 - 70

11. Review of Exempt Items  

To review those items or parts thereof which can be released as 
information available to the public.

71 - 72



Minutes\Executive\3 October 2017

Minutes of a Meeting of the Executive 
held at Surrey Heath House on 3 
October 2017 

+ Cllr Moira Gibson (Chairman)

+
-
+

Cllr Richard Brooks
Cllr Mrs Vivienne Chapman
Cllr Colin Dougan
Cllr Craig Fennell

-

+

Cllr Josephine Hawkins
Cllr Alan McClafferty
Cllr Charlotte Morley

+  Present
-  Apologies for absence presented

In Attendance:  Cllr Rodney Bates, Cllr Bill Chapman, Cllr David Mansfield, Cllr 
Pat Tedder and Cllr Victoria Wheeler

49/E Minutes

The open and exempt minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2017 were 
confirmed and signed by the Chairman. 

50/E Community Fund Grant Applications

The Executive considered 6 grant applications to the Council’s Community Fund 
Grant Scheme. 

Members considered each application, noting the impact that each project would 
have and, where relevant, comparable funding provided by other authorities. 

It was noted that an application from Oakleaf Enterprise to introduce a service for 
vocational training for those experiencing mental ill health had been recommended 
for refusal as the scheme was fully funded until March 2018; it was, however, 
recognised that if necessary a new application could be considered in December 
2017.

Members were advised that the application from Camberley Lawn Tennis Club to 
excavate and construct a crate-based attenuation soakaway system to mitigate 
the flooding of the tennis courts was recommended for deferral as, following 
advice from the Council’s drainage engineer, it was felt that alternative options and 
solutions should be explored.

RESOLVED 

(i) that the following grants be awarded from the Council’s 
Community Fund Grant Scheme, subject to any conditions 
set out in the agenda report:

Applicant Project Grant 
Award

West End To plant bulbs on the A322 grass £300

Page 3

Agenda Item 2. 



Minutes\Executive\3 October 2017

Village 
Society 

highway verges

West End 
Bowls Club

To extend the existing clubhouse 
to meet increasing club 
membership numbers. 

£5,000

Bagshot 
Playing Fields 
Association

To replace a dilapidated children’s 
playground

£10,000

Old Dean 
Bowling Club

To install disabled toilet facilities 
and update the fire alarm system

£5,787

(ii) to refuse the application from Oakleaf  Enterprise in Guildford 
to introduce a service for vocational training for those who 
are experiencing mental ill health, as the scheme is 
sufficiently funded until March 2018; and

(iii) to defer the application from Camberley Lawn Tennis Court to 
install a new system to prevent flooding of the tennis courts 
in order to allow all options to be explored by the Council and 
the applicant.

51/E Air Quality Feasibility Study

The Executive was informed that the National Air Quality Plan for Nitrogen Dioxide 
set out how the Government would ensure that compliance with air quality limits 
was achieved in the shortest time possible. A key part of the Plan was a 
requirement on some local authorities to undertake feasibility studies to explore a 
range of measures to improve air quality. 

The Council had been named in the Plan as one of the authorities needing to 
undertake a feasibility study. Computer modelling had shown that along parts of 
the A331 concentrations of nitrogen dioxide were predicted to exceed the annual 
mean objective for nitrogen dioxide. As a result, the Council had been directed by 
the Secretary of State for the Environment to produce a feasibility study by March 
2018 on options for ensuring compliance with the air quality objectives on the 
A331 in the shortest period possible.

The Government had allocated the Council an initial grant of £50,000 for the 
feasibility study which would be carried out in partnership with Rushmoor and 
Guildford Borough Councils. The funding would enable the Council to develop its 
feasibility study proposal as well as conduct local assessments to support its 
evidence and local understanding which will form part of the proposal. This funding 
represented one tranche of the funding required for the feasibility study and did not 
prejudge further bids. Any further funds required would be subject to the approval 
and submitted by the Council for review by Defra’s Assurance Panel.

RESOLVED to

Page 4



Minutes\Executive\3 October 2017

(i) undertake a feasibility study to explore a range of measures 
to ensure compliance with the air quality objectives in the 
shortest time possible, to be funded from a grant of £50,000 
allocated by the Government; and

(ii) note the 2017 Annual Air Quality Status report for Surrey 
Heath.

52/E Review of Reserves and Provisions

The Executive considered a report detailing the Council’s Reserves and 
Provisions. At 31 March 2017 the Council had £21.35m in useable reserves which 
were backed by cash. The report also made an estimate as to the level of reserves 
as at 31 March 2018 based on current knowledge, together with schedules 
showing what each reserve was for and the rules regarding expenditure.

RESOLVED to note the report.

53/E Response to the Local Government Settlement Technical Consultation

The Executive considered a response to the Government’s consultation on the 
2018/19 Local Government Finance Settlement.

Members considered the proposed response and agreed that the response to 
Question 2 should be amended to state that, if the Government intended to pursue 
a policy for linking a reduction in New Homes Bonus payments to applications 
approved on appeal, the deduction should only be made for applications granted 
on appeal where costs were awarded against the local authority. 

It was also agreed that the letter should be signed by the Leader and the Chief 
Executive. 

RESOLVED to

(i) agree the proposed Consultation response, as amended; and

(ii) delegate to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the 
Leader, the completion and submission of the final 
consultation response.

54/E Surrey Business Rates Pilots

The Executive was reminded that the Council collected £35m in Business Rates 
per year, of which only a small proportion was retained by the Council. 

Members considered the opportunity to participate in a Business Rates Pilot with 
the other Surrey Authorities. The pilot would enable 100% of growth in business 
rates to be retained within Surrey. In exchange, the Government would effectively 
not give any Rate Support Grant or Rural Services Grants; these would have to 
come out of the business rates retained.  Work undertaken had indicated that 

Page 5



Minutes\Executive\3 October 2017

Surrey as an area could benefit significantly by becoming a pilot. The group of 
authorities in the pilot would be required to propose arrangements for splitting the 
additional monies and it had been suggested that there should be a minimum gain 
of at least £500k for each authority. 

The Leader reported that the pilot had been discussed at Surrey Leaders Group 
and that participating in the pilot was currently supported by a majority of 
authorities. It was, however, recognised that all authorities would need to agree to 
participate in the pilot for the submission to be made.

RESOLVED to

(i) note the implications of joining a Surrey Business Rates Pilot 
for 2018/19; and

(ii) delegate to the Executive Head of Finance, in consultation 
with the Leader and Chief Executive, the final terms of the 
pilot and the submission of the application.

Chairman 

Page 6



2017/2018 Mid-Year Report 

Summary: 

This 2017/2018 Mid-Year Report summarises the performance of the Council 
for the first 6 months of the year against the corporate objectives, priorities 
and success measures laid out in the Annual Plan for 2017/2018. 

Portfolio: Transformation

Date signed off: 26th October 2017

Wards Affected:  All

Recommendation 

The Executive is asked to RESOLVE to note the 2017/2018 Mid-Year Report 
and make any comments or suggestions as appropriate.

1. Resource Implications

1.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report.

2. Key Issues 

2.1 The attached report summarises the Council’s mid-year performance 
and progress against the Annual Plan, which was agreed by the 
Executive on 7 March 2017. 

2.2 This Mid-Year report demonstrates the Council’s continued commitment 
to improving the management of its performance to achieve the 
Council’s Five Year Strategy. 

2.3 All objectives are on track. All success measures are above target or are 
within 2% of their target. 

2.4 Monthly meetings are in place with all Executive Heads of Service to 
monitor performance. Any areas of concern can be addressed promptly 
and reported, by exception, to the Corporate Management Team. 

3. Proposals

3.1 It is proposed that the Executive note the Mid-Year report and make any 
comments or suggestions as appropriate.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 5. 



Annexes Annex A – 2017/2018 Mid-Year report

Background Papers Annual Plan 2017/2018
Five Year Strategy

Author/Contact Details Jacinta Stevens, Senior Organisational 
Development Officer 
Jacinta.stevens@surreyheath.gov.uk 

Service Manager Louise Livingston - Executive Head of 
Transformation 

 

Page 8

mailto:Jacinta.stevens@surreyheath.gov.uk


SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

1
Page 9



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

2
Page 10



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

3

In March we published our Annual Plan for 2017/18 and our vision for making 
Surrey Heath an even better place to live, work and enjoy.  This report details our 
achievements and performance to date.

Under our Place objective you will see that we are making excellent progress in 
bringing forward our regeneration plans for Camberley Town Centre.  The Square 
Shopping Centre (formerly The Mall) was re-named in September.  Refurbishment 
work started in July and you can now see the new Shopping Centre taking shape, 
which will give Camberley a fresh and modern look, supporting economic growth 
across Surrey Heath.

Our work to help deliver improvements to the High Street is making significant 
progress with the launch of the Shopfront Improvement Grant Scheme as part of our 
Prosperity objective. Work has started in setting up High Street forums and engaging 
with businesses, not only on the Shopfront Improvement Grant Scheme but also the 
High Street public realm improvements.

Surrey Heath has been appointed as the administering authority for Joint Waste 
Solutions. This partnership, under our Performance objective, will realise savings in 
the region of £300,000 to the Council, whilst keeping our place clean, green and safe 
as we strive to continue to be one of the highest recycling authorities in the Country.

Since April we have delivered some excellent events for the whole community, our 
People, to enjoy. These include the Camberley International Festival, Camberley 
Carnival, Go-Tri, Surrey Heath Show, participation in Surrey Youth Games, Outdoor 
Theatre in Frimley Lodge Park, Watchetts Festival of Sport and Frimley Lodge Live 
Music Festival, as well as numerous nature and heritage walks and workshops.

This report provides more detail on our performance as well as our success measures 
against the objectives we set ourselves for the year. There is more work to be done but 
we have built solid foundations for what we know will be a challenging but exciting 
second half of the year.

Karen Whelan      Councillor Moira Gibson
Chief Executive      Leader of the Council

Foreword

3
Page 11



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

4

Place
Objective In 2017/18 we said we would:

• Take forward the refurbishment and 
rebranding of the Mall shopping centre in 
Camberley. 
 
The Mall Shopping Centre was rebranded 
on the 5th September at a launch event and 
is now called The Square. The new logo 
has been incorporated into all marketing 
material. The Square refurbishment works 
have commenced in Grace Reynolds Walk 
and are proceeding on time and within 
budget. 

• Commence redevelopment of Ashwood 
House in Camberley into high quality 
development and aim to maximise the uses 
on the ground floor and redevelopment of 
Pembroke House on the Frimley Road to 
provide affordable housing. 
 
Contracts have now been exchanged with 
the developer Berkeley Homes. Planning 
applications for the redevelopment 
of Ashwood House (116 homes) and 
Pembrook House (25 affordable homes) 
have been submitted and are due to be 
considered in November 2017. Whilst the 
Ashwood House development continues we 
will work with new retailers to occupy the 
ground floor. 

• Bring forward proposals for the 
redevelopment of Camberley’s ‘London 
Road Block’ including an outline planning 
application. 
 
The Council has commissioned consultants 
to prepare a high level feasibility study. This 
is now underway and due to be completed 
by the end of 2017. 

To make Surrey Heath an even 
better place where people are 
happy to live

Priorities
• To deliver an improved Camberley 

Town Centre 
• To promote high quality building and 

design standards across the Borough
• To reduce waste and increase the 

proportion of waste recycled and 
recovered.

• To provide quality leisure facilities

Page 12



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

5

• Improve the public spaces across the town centre starting with Princess 
Way and the High Street. 
 
A Local Enterprise Partnership bid for High Street improvements was 
submitted in August. Work is now starting on a detailed project plan in 
anticipation of a positive response. 

• Bring forward proposals for the Arena Leisure Centre. 
 
The Replacement Leisure Centre Options Appraisal report was agreed 
by Executive in July 2017. We are currently looking at the options with 
a view to commencing the formal tender process, securing a partner to 
deliver the final outcome, in Autumn 2018.

Place

Page 13



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

6

Prosperity
Objective In 2017/18 we said we would:

• Use borrowing to generate investment returns 
to support services which contribute to 
economic growth in Surrey Heath. 
 
The Council has invested in the refurbishment 
of The Square which will assist with economic 
growth in Surrey Heath. We continue to look for 
further investment opportunties which to date 
have generated a return on investment of 3.3%. 

• Review the Local Plan and produce an ‘Issues 
and Options’ document for public consultation. 
 
The Issues and Options Document is on track 
and is due to go out for public consultation by 
March 2018. 

• Work to increase residential development 
across the Borough. 
 
The delivery of new homes at Princess Royal 
Barracks and Deepcut has moved a step 
closer. Cala Homes have submitted a planning 
application for the first 200+ new homes. 

• Refresh the Economic Development Strategy. 
 
The Council is currently reviewing the 
Economic Development Strategy with an 
updated version due to be considered by the 
Executive. 

• Promote Surrey Heath as a location for 
companies to invest in. 
 
The Council has either hosted or taken part 
in four local and national events to promote 
Surrey Heath. These events being; The 
Camberley Expo, REVO, Surrey Heath Business 
Breakfast and MIPIM UK. 

We will support and promote our 
local economy so that people 
can work and do business across 
Surrey Heath

Priorities
• Work with partners to support 

our economy through strategic 
development planning and economic 
growth

• Encourage inward investment
• Support local businesses by 

encourage improvements to local 
transport and infrastructure.

• Encourage new developments to 
strengthen the local economy

Page 14



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

7

• Work with Camberley High Street stakeholders to help deliver improvements 
to the High Street. 
 
The Shopfront Improvement Grant Scheme has now been launched and is 
available to receive applications with the first one already submitted. Work 
has started to set up High Street forums and engage with businesses, not 
only on the shop front improvement scheme but also the High Street public 
realm improvements. 

• Press for a positive outcome from our Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
funding bids and work up plans for the delivery of the projects to improve the 
Camberley area transport and roads. 
 
We have been successful with bids for The Meadows  and the A30 frontage. 
A bid was submitted to the Local Enterprise Partnership for High Street 
improvement in August. Final board approval is due in December 2017. In 
addition the Council has made a bid to the One Public Estate and other bids 
to goverment departments. 

• Encourage and support Surrey County Council to deliver the A30 road 
improvements and the Meadows roundabout works. 
 
A consultation has already commenced with businesses regarding the 
Meadows roundabout improvements. A public consultation process on the 
Surrey County Council website has now taken place. 

• Work with Business Associations across the Borough to develop projects to 
deliver improvements. 
 
The Frimley Business Association was awarded the Silver Award for their 
greening project. The official opening of the A331 cycle lane took place in July 
with the Yorktown and Watchmoor Park Business Association.

Prosperity

Page 15



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

8

People
Objective In 2017/18 we said we would:

• Work with partners to promote the health and 
wellbeing of our residents and encourage delivery 
of activities that promote sport and healthy living. 
 
Summer bin hangers were distributed to promote 
summer wellness. Working with our partners, 
Frimley Park Hospital and the Camberley Massage 
Centre, self-assessments for the Workplace Health 
and Wellbeing Charter are being carried out. 
Business Services are promoting physical exercise 
in the work place.  

• Pilot a new dementia respite day care service at 
the Windle Valley Centre. 
 
Funding has been agreed for the refurbishment 
of the Windle Valley Day Centre and work 
commenced in October.  
 
The work around the provision of Dementia Day 
Care services has been undertaken in two phases.  
Funding has been secured to deliver a Carer 
Respite service, supporting residents and their 
Carers by offering short notice service provision.   
This service focuses on support for carers 
generally and not just those supporting people 
with Dementia.  Work is currently ongoing with this 
service with it intended to commence in January 
2018. 

• Deliver a new Young Ambassadors programme to 
encourage community involvement and leadership 
in young people. 
 
We have successfully recruited 7 Young 
Ambassadors who promoted the Surrey Youth 
Games. This year’s Young Ambassadors will be 
recognised as part of the Surrey Heath Sports 
Awards ceremony taking place in October 2017. 

To support and encourage 
communities where people can 
live happily and healthily

Priorities 
• To work with partners to improve 

health and wellbeing
• Support older and more vulnerable 

people to live independently and 
remain active

• Use our parks and countryside 
to enhance sporting and leisure 
opportunities

• Address housing needs within the 
community

Page 16



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

9

• Encourage an increase in the number of volunteers delivering sport and health 
related activities and events. 
 
A new webpage advertising volunteering opportunities has been developed and is 
live on the Councils website. Additionally, 6 volunteers were successfully recruited to 
support the borough’s first “Go-Tri” triathlon event in September 2017.  
   

• Re-evaluate and operate our sports facilities to best meet changing customer needs. 
 
The Arena replacement project could see the delivery of a state of the art leisure 
facility developed around the needs of the borough.  We are currently working 
closely with the Lawn Tennis Association to develop a park tennis strategy as well 
as assessing the potential to incorporate netball activities. 

• Expand Camberley Youth Theatre and Community Arts Programme. 
 
Camberley Theatre has been chosen as the only Surrey based venue to be part of 
Hopper; a joint project with Surrey Arts and Take Art, who are looking at developing 
theatre for Early Years audiences.  
 
The Theatre will deliver three Early Years productions in the coming year as part of 
the Hopper project. Additionally Creative Minds Academy Youth Theatre has seen 
membership increase from 60 to 90 in the past 6 months, classes have increased 
from 5 to 11, with new classes such as technical theatre and dance offered. 

• Consult on and develop a new Healthy Home Strategy addressing how homes meet 
the needs of our residents. 
 
Work has commenced on developing a Healthy Home Strategy in preparation for 
the implementation of the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017. 

• Deliver a programme of high quality community events. 
 
Since April we have delivered the Camberley International Festival, Camberley 
Carnival, Go-Tri, Surrey Heath Show, 
Circus Zyair, participation in Surrey 
Youth Games, Outdoor Theatre in 
Frimley Lodge Park, Watchetts Festival 
of Sport and Frimley Lodge Live music 
Festival as well as numerous nature/
heritage walks and workshops.

Page 17



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

10

Performance
Objective In 2017/18 we said we would:

• Continue to improve digital access to services, 
making them more accessible and efficient to 
all. 
 
We are implementing a cloud based document 
management system and a full review of the 
telephone system is underway to improve both 
the customer experience and efficiency. 

• Review our asset management plan to ensure 
we maximise every opportunity to better use 
our land and buildings including Surrey Heath 
House. 
 
A review has commenced of the Councils 
land holdings to identify potential income and 
development opportunities as well as shared 
working in our public services. South Central 
Ambulance Service who have entered into a 
lease arrangement to occupy part of the Ian 
Goodchild Centre is one recent example. 

• Become the administering authority for the 
joint waste contract and establish a centralised 
office to manage the joint waste contract 
and the non-statutory functions of the Waste 
Disposal Authority. 
 
Surrey Heath has been appointed as the 
administering authority for the joint waste 
contract. A centralised contract management 
office has been formed which has been named 
Joint Waste Solutions (JWS). The client teams 
for waste and street cleansing across the 
partnership were transferred to Surrey Heath 
on 2 May 2017.  

To deliver effective and efficient 
services better and faster

Priorities
• To improve digital access to services 

and provide excellent customer care
• Adapt the way we work to meet 

changing needs and challenges
• To work collaboratively with partners 

in all sectors
• Maximise use of buildings and land 

we own

Page 18



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

11

• Commence the joint waste contract with our partners 
 
The contract with Amey was signed by the four authorities on 25th May 
2017. On the same date the Inter Agency Agreement was signed with 
the four authorities with Surrey County Council as observer. The contract 
commenced in Elmbridge on 5th June and Woking on 11th September.
The Surrey Heath contract is due to commence in Feb 2018.

• Make parts of the Doman Road Depot available to the joint waste 
contractor to generate additional income to the Council. 
 
Areas of the Doman Road Depot have been allocated for use by the joint 
contract. Partners will not be using the depot until the contract in Surrey 
Heath commences in February 2018. 

• Install a new corporate and guest wireless network in Surrey Heath House 
to support agile and efficient working. 
 
The installation of the new wireless network has taken place in Surrey 
Heath House. This will be live by the end October 2017. 

• Deliver efficient governance arrangements by successfully implementing 
the outcomes of the Boundary Commission for England’s Electoral Review. 
 
The final recommendations from the Boundary Commission were 
published at the end of August and are subject to an order being laid 
before Parliament with the new arrangements due to be implemented at 
the 2019 Local Elections. A Polling Place review will commence as a result 
of the changes. 

Performance

Page 19



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

12

• Implement a new Performance Management framework to drive services to be 
more efficient. 
 
The performance management framework has been reviewed with new 
elements updated including a new competency framework and a complete 
cycle of the performance documents now complete. 

• Continue to explore alternative ways to deliver our services more efficiently. 
 
The waste partnership went live in May 2017, with Surrey Heath becoming 
the employing authority for Surrey Waste Solutions. There is further work 
underway to develop the Environmental Health Partnership. enhancing the 
services already being delivered in partnership with other local athorities and 
agencies. 

• Continue to identify commercial opportunities to increase income and support 
the Council’s sustainability. 
 
The Council is working to bring forward acquisition opportunities from local 
property agents. An agreed strategy is being implemented which sets out the 
area of search and the criteria for taking prospects forward. The Council is also 
working to identify potential areas of housing development on council owned 
sites.

Performance

Page 20



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

13

Additional Success Measures
In addition to the various projects outlined in the plan we said we would measure success 
by the below indicators which focus on matters of particular interest to residents.

People

Performance

Prosperity

Place
• Percentage of Household Waste sent for 

Recycling, Reuse and Composting
• Occupancy of Camberley town centre car 

parks 
• Percentage of food premises achieving 3 

stars or above

• Increase in Council Tax Base (No. of 
Properties)

• Increase in Business Rates base (No. of 
Properties)

• Percentage of minor planning applications 
determined within 8 weeks (National 
Target)

• Percentage of major planning applications 
determined within 13 weeks (National 
Target)

• Time taken to process benefit claims 
(Days)

• Percentage of complaints responded to 
within target

• Collection rate for Council Tax Per Quarter
• Collections rate for Business Rates Per 

Quarter
• Percentage of payment transactions where 

the customer has self served
• Customer satisfaction rating of good/

excellent to exceed 90%

• Number of users of the Arena Leisure 
centre

• Sports pitch income for the year
• Number of journeys by community bus in 

a year
• Number of meals on wheels served in the 

year

Target Apr - Jun Jul - Sep

Target Apr - Jun Jul - Sep

Target Apr - Jun Jul - Sep

Target Apr - Jun Jul - Sep

100% A 29.34% 28.06% (57.4%)

65% Q 83%

2,589 Q 2,655

15 Q 6.4 9.7

95% Q 96.62%

63% Q 62% 62%

54%55% Q 53%

90% Q 90% 88%

30% Q 34%

90% Q 100% 100%

500,000 A 121,071 125,062 (246,133)

£110,000 A £18,577 £20,863.66 (£39,441)

100% A 30.35% 26.75% (57.1%)

5,166 6,806 (11,972)

9,596 9,853 (19,449)

35% 

24,000 A

28,500 A

35,787 Q 36,143 36,229

2,656

90%

60% Q 89% 91%

96.61%

Key
A = Annual
Q = Quarterly

Page 21



SURREY HEATH BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL PLAN 2017 /18 MID-YEAR REVIEW

14

Comments and Feedback
We always welcome comments, suggestions and feedback (critical or otherwise) 
on our plans and the way we write our documents and communicate them.

• You can email our Customer Contact centre at enquiries@surreyheath.gov.uk  

• You can drop written comments off at our main office 
Surrey Heath House, Knoll Road, Camberley, Surrey GU15 3HD 

• You can telephone our Customer Contact Centre on 01276 707100 

• You can speak to your local Councillor who will be able to pass your comments 
back if you wish. Contact details for your Councillor can be found on our 
website www.surreyheath.gov.uk 

• Stay in touch with us via Twitter and Facebook

@surreyheath SurreyHeath

Page 22



Allotment Sand and Gravel Charity – Funding Request – Playground at 
Princess Royal Barracks, Alma Gardens, Deepcut.

Summary

An application has been received from the Princess Royal Barracks, Deepcut for a 
grant of £30,051 from the Allotments Sand and Gravel Charity to provide a new 
community playground. 

Portfolio: Leader

Date Signed Off: 18 October 2017
Wards Affected: Mytchett and Deepcut  

Recommendation 

The Executive is advised to recommend to Council that

(i) a grant be made from the Allotment Sand and Gravel Charity (No 252731) 
in the sum of £30,051 to the Princess Royal Barracks to provide a new a 
playground; and

(ii) the Chief Executive be authorised to allocate funding relating to this 
project. 

1. Resource Implications

1.1 The Allotment Sand and Gravel Charity was established following the 
sale of a piece of land for £100,000 and is administered by this Council 
as the Trustee. As the proposed grant would be met by the Charity, 
there would be no cost to the Council.

2. Key Issues

2.1 The Allotment Sand and Gravel Charity funds can be allocated to

a) relieving cases of need for persons resident in the Urban District 
of Frimley and Camberley who are either

(i) Aged or impotent, or
(ii) sick, convalescent, disabled, handicapped or infirm

b) towards providing, developing or maintaining public open spaces 
and recreation grounds in the said urban district.

2.2 As the Council as a whole is the Trustee, any grant will require 
approval at a full Council meeting.

2.3 The terms of the Charity Scheme requires that the capital received 
from the sale of the land must be retained.  However the Council has 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6. 



agreed that any interest received amounting to over £1,000 should be 
allocated to deserving cases which meet the specific criteria of the 
Charity.

2.4 The fund currently has £133,782, with £100,000 to be retained; the 
residue of £33,782 is available for allocation. 

2.5 The grant application by the Princess Royal Barracks, Deepcut is for 
the replacement of the playground facilities at Alma Gardens, Deepcut, 
and is endorsed and supported by the Surrey Heath Military Covenant 
Group.  The facilities are used by both civilian and military young 
people. This Ward is geographically within the previous Urban District 
of Frimley and Camberley and therefore meets the criteria on public 
open spaces and recreation grounds.

2.6 The total project cost is £84,000 and so far £53,949 has been raised 
through a successful funding bid to the Military Covenant Grant 
Scheme and a Defence Infrastructure Organisation (DIO) contribution.  
A funding gap of £30,051 exists which is the amount sought to ensure 
that the works are able to proceed.  The project lead is the Royal 
Logistic Corp, and the preferred quotation is submitted by Proludic.  
The play area will provide new facilities for area within Deepcut not 
subject to any redevelopment.  A commitment has been given to 
provide the ongoing maintenance by the Defence Infrastructure 
Organisation with the new facilities being expected to last for 30 years.    

2.7 The Ward Councillors for Mytchett and Deepcut, Councillors Paul 
Deach, Craig Fennell and Joanne Potter, have been consulted and 
have given in-principal support to the application.

2.8 The Council’s Armed Forces Champion, and Transformation Portfolio 
Holder,  Councillor Colin Dougan also supports this project, which has 
been part funded through the Armed Forces Community Covenant 
Fund (£39,499)and is seen as a key component to bringing the two 
communities closer together.

3. Options

3.1 The Executive has the option to:

i) recommend to the Council the full sum requested;
ii) recommend a lesser amount; or
iii) recommend to the Council that the application is not supported.

4. Proposals

3.2 It is proposed that the Executive agree to recommend to the Council 
that a grant in the sum of £30,051 be approved for the proposed new 
play area and that authority be delegated to the Chief Executive to 
allocate the funds.

Page 24



4. Supporting Information

4.1 The applicants, the Princess Royal Barracks are proposing to complete 
the project, as soon as the fundraising is complete for this project.  This 
grant would significantly assist in promoting the Council’s ambitions in 
its links with the military community and future aspirations for the 
Deepcut area.

 
5. Corporate Objectives And Key Priorities

5.1 Using the green space we have to its best possible advantage by 
   creating sporting and leisure opportunities for all.

5.2 Engaging with young people to help improve and sustain their leisure 
opportunities whilst encouraging them to take responsibility.

6. Governance Issues

6.1 The Council is the trustee for the charity and any grants must be 
approved by that body. The application falls within the charity criteria.

7. Risk Management 

7.1 This project has a low risk. 

8. Equalities Impact 

8.1 There will be a positive impact on disabled as the plans are designed 
to be fully inclusive in providing accessibility. 

9. Community Safety

9.1 There are no related community safety issues.

10. Consultation 

10.1 The Ward Councillors have been consulted and have supported the 
application in principal.

11. Officer Comments 

11.1 This is an opportunity to assist a programme designed to further 
integrate children and young people from both the military and civilian 
communities, with the involvement of their parents. The play area has 
previously been well utilised by both communities but has been 
identified as needing significant improvements. The project would 
dovetail with the aspirations and targets within the Community 
Covenant, which has been fully endorsed and driven by this Council. 

11.2 The application fully meets the criteria required by the Sand and 
Gravel Charity.  This application offers an opportunity to make a real 

Page 25



difference to the residents in the area and meet the Community 
Covenant aims driven and endorsed by this Council. 

Annexes None

Background Papers None

Author/Contact Details Jayne Boitoult – Community Partnerships Officer
jayne.boitoult@surreyheath.gov.uk

Head of Service Louise Livingston
Executive Head, Transformation 

Consultations, Implications and Issues Addressed 

Resources Required Consulted
Revenue
Capital
Human Resources
Asset Management
IT 

Other Issues Required Consulted
Corporate Objectives & Key Priorities
Policy Framework 
Legal
Governance
Sustainability 
Risk Management
Equalities Impact Assessment
Community Safety
Human Rights
Consultation
P R & Marketing
 

Page 26

mailto:jayne.boitoult@surreyheath.gov.uk


Response to the DCLG consultation on Planning for the Right Homes in the 
Right Places

Summary
The Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) is currently 
consulting on proposals to deliver homes in the right places. The consultation 
includes proposals which have an impact on Surrey heath.

A response to the consultation questions is attached at Annex 1 

The consultation runs until 9th November.

Portfolio: Regulatory
Date Portfolio Holder signed off report: 20 October 2017
Wards Affected: All

Recommendation 

The Executive is advised to RESOLVE to

(i) Note the publication of the DCLG consultation; and 

(ii) Agree the response set out in Appendix 1 of this report.

1. Resource Implications

1.1 There are no resource implications beyond that provided for within the 
agreed budget for 2017/18. 

2. Key Issues

2.1 The Department of Communities and Local Government (DCLG) is 
currently consulting on a proposal document ‘Planning for the right 
homes in the right places’. This document includes proposals that 
impact on Surrey Heath. These are:

 
 a standard method for calculating local authorities’ housing need
 a statement of common ground to improve how local authorities work 

together to meet housing and other needs across boundaries
 making the use of viability assessments simpler, quicker and more 

transparent
 increasing planning application fees in those areas where local 

planning authorities are delivering the homes their communities need

2.2 With regard to a standard method of calculating housing need a figure 
has  been applied to Surrey Heath’s’ Housing Market Area (Surrey 
Heath Rushmoor and Hart) which would reduce the overall housing 
need figure for the HMA  from 1,200 per annum  identified in the 
current Strategic Housing Market Assessment (SHMA) to 938 per 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7. 



annum. For Surrey Heath this would reduce the requirement for 382 
per annum to 352 per annum. Whilst this is the overall housing need 
figure it does not mean that Surrey Heath will be in a position to meet 
all of that need. However both Hart and Rushmoor will be in opposition 
to take any unmet need arising in Surrey Heath.

2.3 With regard to statement of Common Grounds, this is an approach that 
most Local Authorities, including Surrey Heath would already 
undertake through the Local Plan making process and this approach is 
supported.

2.4 With regard to testing viability at Local Plan stage this approach would 
limit the opportunity for developers seeking to provide less 
infrastructure necessary by arguing viability at the planning application 
stage. Viability testing is already usually undertaken on draft Local 
Plans as good practice.

2.5 With regard to an increase in planning fees this approach is supported

3. Options

3.1 The Executive has the following options:

a) AGREE the response to the DCLG consultation on the ‘Right 
Homes in the Right Places’

b) AGREE the response with modifications to the DCLG 
consultation on the ‘Right Homes in the Right Places’; or

c) NOT AGREE the response to the DCLG consultation on the 
‘Right Homes in the Right Places’

4. Proposals

4.1 Members agree the response to Mayor of London in respect of the 
transport Strategy for London (set out in Appendix 1). 

5. Corporate Objectives And Key Priorities

5.1 Underpins Objective 1 of the Corporate Plan - Making Surrey Heath an 
even better place where people are happy to live by monitoring the 
vision and spatial planning objectives of surrounding authorities and 
ensuring that Surrey Heath’s interests are fully considered.

6. Policy Framework

6.1 The consultation process Surrey Heath is responding to is part of the 
process of preparing a Local Plan for Surrey Heath

7. Other matters

Page 28



7.1 In relation to governance, sustainability, risk management, equalities 
impact, human rights, community safety, consultation, PR and 
Marketing there are no matters arising from this consultation by the 
DCLG.

Annexes Appendix 1 Letter to the DCLG

Background Papers Link to the DCLG consultation on the Right Homes in 
the Right Places
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-
for-the-right-homes-in-the-right-places-consultation-
proposals

Author/Contact Details Jane Ireland – Planning Policy and Support Manager
Jane.ireland@surreyheath.gov.uk

Head of Service Jenny Rickard – Executive Head of Regulatory

Consultations, Implications and Issues Addressed 

Resources Required Consulted
Revenue  
Capital
Human Resources
Asset Management
IT 
Other Issues Required Consulted
Corporate Objectives & Key Priorities  
Policy Framework  
Legal
Governance
Sustainability 
Risk Management
Equalities Impact Assessment
Community Safety
Human Rights
Consultation
P R & Marketing
 

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-right-homes-in-the-right-places-consultation-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-right-homes-in-the-right-places-consultation-proposals
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-right-homes-in-the-right-places-consultation-proposals


This page is intentionally left blank



DCLG Consultation Response: Planning for the right homes in the right places

Your details:

Title:

First Name*:

Family name (surname)*:

Address: Planning Policy, Surrey Heath BC Knoll Road Camberley, 

City / Town: Camberley

Postal Code*: GU15 3ED

Telephone Number 01276 707100

Email Address*: planning.policy@surreyheath.gov.uk

Are the views expressed on this consultation your own personal views or an official response 
from an organisation you represent?

 Personal View

 Organisational Response

If you are responding on behalf of an organisation, please tick the box which best describes 
your organisation:

 Local Authority (including National Parks, Broads Authority, the Greater London 
Authority and London Boroughs)

 Neighbourhood Planning Body / Parish or Town Council

 Private Sector Organisation (including housebuilders, housing associations, 
businesses, consultants)

 Trade Association / Interest Group / Voluntary or Charitable Organisation

 Other (please specify)

Page 31

mailto:planning.policy@surreyheath.gov.uk


Please provide the name of your organisation:

Surrey Heath Borough Council

Section 1: Proposed approach to calculating the local housing need

Question 1(a): 
Do you agree with the proposed standard approach to assessing local housing need? If not, 
what alternative approach or other factors should be considered?

  Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments: 

The current process of calculating objectively assessed housing need leaves substantial 
room for interpretation. We therefore support the principle of a standardised methodology 
which would remove dispute over how housing need is calculated and speed up the local 
plan process. 

However it is important to take account of constraints on new development. Surrey Heath is 
impacted by the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area and , like most of Surrey, is 
heavily constrained by the Green Belt and other nationally important designations. These 
designations impose severe limitations on our ability to meet local housing need. In the 
interests of transparency and consistency, it is essential that constraints on development are 
taken in account when determining housing need for each authority.

We note that the data table accompanying the consultation includes a figure for each local 
authority area of land that is constrained, but this figure plays no part in the standardised 
methodology and makes no reference to Special Protection Areas. SHBC believe that  the 
local housing need figure needs be modified by the constraints in each authority. This would 
provide a mechanism that recognises the Government’s dual goals of meeting housing 
demand wherever possible, while at the same time protecting the Green Belt. Recognition of 
nationally important constraints in setting a housing need figure could replace the arbitrary 
40% cap proposed in the consultation, and further speed up the local plan process by 
removing another area that is often subject to dispute at examination.

The standardised methodology has the potential not only to simplify and speed up local plan 
preparation, but also to address the balance to be struck between meeting housing need 
and protecting the Green Belt.

Page 32



Question 1(b):
How can information on local housing need be made more transparent?

Comments:

SHBC welcomes the Government’s proposal to clearly catalogue and display every local 
authority’s housing need figure. Improved transparency can be achieved by including the 
ONS figures used for projected household growth and affordability ratio within the adjoining 
data table.

Question 2: 
Do you agree with the proposal that an assessment of local housing need should be able to 
be relied upon for a period of two years from the date a plan is submitted?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

Any period of less than two years would put local authorities under increased pressure 
between submission and adoption.

Question 3: 
Do you agree that we should amend national planning policy so that a sound plan should 
identify local housing needs using a clear and justified method?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

SHBC welcomes the Government’s proposed amendment to national planning policy that 
will minimise delays in the examination of a local plan, as well as reduce costs to the local 
authority.

Question 4: 
Do you agree with our approach in circumstances when plan makers deviate from the 
proposed method, including the level of scrutiny we expect from the Planning Inspectors?

 Yes

 No

Page 33



 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

It is important that any deviation from a standardised method is met with scrutiny to ensure 
that each local plan is sound.

Question 5(a): 
Do you agree that the Secretary of State should have discretion to defer the period for using 
the baseline for some local planning authorities? If so, how best could this be achieved, what 
minimum requirements should be in place before the Secretary of State may exercise this 
discretion, and for how long should such deferral be permitted?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

It is not clear from the consultation how this would be applied.

Question 5(b): 
Do you consider that authorities that have an adopted joint local plan, or which are covered 
by an adopted spatial development strategy, should be able to assess their five year land 
supply and/or be measured for the purposes of the Housing Delivery Test, across the area 
as a whole?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

Not applicable to Surrey Heath

Question 5(c):
Do you consider that authorities that are not able to use the new method for calculating local 
housing need should be able to use an existing or an emerging local plan figure for housing 
need for the purposes of calculating five year land supply and to be measured for the 
purposes of the Housing Delivery Test?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

Page 34



It is not clear from the consultation how this would be applied.

Question 6: 
Do you agree with the proposed transitional arrangements for introducing the standard 
approach for calculating local housing need?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

The paper states that a number of plan makers have already made significant steps in their 
plan, and the Government wants to encourage them to complete their plan whilst avoiding 
further delays that could undermine the delivery of new homes. Since it is not known when 
the revised NPPF shall be published, the transitional period is currently of an undetermined 
length. This means many authorities will not be clear on whether to proceed with their 
current OAN or to change to the new figure proposed in this consultation. Until the revised 
NPPF is published, the Government should refrain from imposing a time limit on plan 
submission before the new figure must be used.

Section 2: Statement of common ground

Question 7(a):
Do you agree with the proposed administrative arrangements for preparing the statement of 
common ground?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

We agree that local authorities should only be signatories to those strategic issues covered 
in the statement of common ground in which they have an interest, and that authorities can 
be signatories to more than one statement where appropriate. In Surrey, and the South East 
more generally, the overlap of interests and issues between authorities that belong to 
different HMAs is significant. The administrative arrangements set out should allow a local 
planning authority to be a signatory to several statements, but be clear on which strategic 
issues are relevant to them.

Page 35



Question 7(b): 
How do you consider a statement of common ground should be implemented in areas where 
there is a Mayor with strategic plan-making powers?

Comments:

No comment .Not applicable to Surrey Heath

Question 7(c): 
Do you consider there to be a role for directly elected Mayors without strategic plan-making 
powers, in the production of a statement of common ground?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

No comment .Not applicable to Surrey Heath

Question 8:
Do you agree that the proposed content and timescales for publication of the statement of 
common ground are appropriate and will support more effective co-operation on strategic 
cross-boundary planning matters?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

SHBC agrees with the proposed content and timescales for statements of common ground.

Question 9(a):
Do you agree with the proposal to amend the tests of soundness to include that:
i) plans should be prepared based on a strategy informed by agreements over the wider 
area; and
ii) plans should be based on effective joint working on cross-boundary strategic priorities, 
which are evidenced in the statement of common ground?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Page 36



Comments:

SHBC believes that irrespective of the statement of common ground and discussion on 
cross-boundary working, it may not always be possible for neighbouring authorities to agree 
on all cross boundary issues.  Subject to proper scrutiny of the degree of co-operation 
undertaken, the lack of agreement should not necessarily lead to a Local Plan being found 
unsound.  

Question 9(b):
Do you agree to the proposed transitional arrangements for amending the tests of 
soundness to ensure effective co-operation?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

SHBC supports the proposed transitional arrangements; the new tests of soundness cannot 
be applied until 12 months after the revision to the NPPF to allow for the 12 month period in 
which a statement of common ground is produced.

Section 3: Planning for a mix of housing needs

Question 10(a): 
Do you have any suggestions on how to streamline the process for identifying the housing 
need for individual groups and what evidence could be used to help plan to meet the needs 
of particular groups?

Comments:

SHBC agrees with the Government in that the current methodology for identifying the 
housing need for individual groups is complicated, and can be time consuming and costly. 
We therefore welcome a streamlining of the process. However, the consultation does not set 
out how evidence for meeting the housing needs of specific groups will be produced. There 
needs to be further details on how the process will be streamlined before seeking comments.

Question 10(b): 
Do you agree that the current definition of older people within the National Planning Policy 
Framework is still fit-for-purpose?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

Page 37



The current definition of ‘older people’ is very broad in that it includes anyone above the age 
of retirement. It would useful to update the definition to move away from ‘retirement’ and 
become more focused on the typical needs of elderly people, which could include the need 
to downsize, the need for retirement or sheltered housing and those with support or care 
needs.

Section 4: Neighbourhood Planning

Question 11(a):
Should a local plan set out the housing need for designated neighbourhood planning areas 
and parished areas within the area?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

Housing need for designated neighbourhood planning areas and parished areas within a 
borough or district should reflect the spatial strategy set out in a Local Plan.

Question 11(b):
Do you agree with the proposal for a formula-based approach to apportion housing need to 
neighbourhood plan bodies in circumstances where the local plan cannot be relied on as a 
basis for calculating housing need?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

It is too simplistic to calculate what percentage the population of a neighbourhood planning 
area is of the overall population in the local planning authority area. 

Section 5: Proposed approach to Viability Assessment

Question 12: 
Do you agree that local plans should identify the infrastructure and affordable housing 
needed, how these will be funded and the contributions developers will be expected to 
make?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Page 38



Comments:

SHBC supports the Government’s proposed changes to viability assessments. 

Question 13:
In reviewing guidance on testing plans and policies for viability, what amendments could be 
made to improve current practice?

Comments:

The Government should consider recommending a standardised methodology for calculating 
viability for plan making purposes, as this area of work is subject to the same level of dispute 
as that applying to housing demand forecasts.

Question 14: 
Do you agree that where policy requirements have been tested for their viability, the issue 
should not usually need to be tested again at the planning application stage?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

SHBC welcomes this initiative which should ensure that policy requirements, such as the 
delivery of infrastructure and  affordable housing, are being met in full. 

Question 15: 
How can Government ensure that infrastructure providers, including housing associations, 
are engaged throughout the process, including in circumstances where a viability 
assessment may be required?

Comments:

The Government should consider publishing guidance that encourages engagement with 
housing associations and infrastructure providers in developing Local Plan policies.

Question 16: 
What factors should we take into account in updating guidance to encourage viability 
assessments to be simpler, quicker and more transparent, for example through a 
standardised report or summary format?

Comments:

Uniformity across viability assessments would be welcomed for improved transparency and 
simplicity. A preferred approach to calculating costs as well as the use of standard terms, 

Page 39



pre-defined in a glossary, would make assessments easier to understand and therefore 
more transparent.

Question 17(a): 
Do you agree that local planning authorities should set out in plans how they will monitor and 
report on planning agreements to help ensure that communities can easily understand what 
infrastructure and affordable housing has been secured and delivered through developer 
contributions?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

SHBC agrees with the principle of reporting infrastructure and affordable housing provision.  
Most planning authorities already do report these in the  Annual Monitoring Report (AMR). 

Question 17(b):
What factors should we take into account in preparing guidance on a standard approach to 
monitoring and reporting planning obligations?

Comments:

The Government needs to consider how the monitoring of this information will sit alongside 
the Annual Monitoring Report to avoid reporting duplication. 

Question 17(c): 
How can local planning authorities and applicants work together to better publicise 
infrastructure and affordable housing secured through new development once development 
has commenced, or at other stages of the process?

Comments:

it would be useful to publish the infrastructure and affordable housing provisions secured at 
the application stage, with this then being reviewed and updated throughout the process of 
development. This will improve the transparency of developer contributions, as well as 
highlighting any changes that may occur. 

Section 6: Planning fees

Question 18(a): 
Do you agree that a further 20 per cent fee increase should be applied to those local 
planning authorities who are delivering the homes their communities need? What should be 
the criteria to measure this?

 Yes

Page 40



 No 

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

A further 20 percent increase should be applied to local planning authorities who are 
delivering the homes their communities need; not as a reward but as a necessity to ensure 
their planning departments are able to increase both capacity and capability. The 
Government must be careful to ensure that the criteria for being able to charge an increased 
fee is not simply the number of homes being built; authorities such as SHBC which is  
heavily constrained should not be penalised owing to their surroundings.

Question 18(b):
Do you think there are more appropriate circumstances when a local planning authority 
should be able to charge the further 20 per cent? If so, do you have views on how these 
circumstances could work in practice?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

SHBC considers that local planning authorities should be able to charge the further 20 per 
cent without stringent criteria.

Question 18(c):
Should any additional fee increase be applied nationally once all local planning authorities 
meet the required criteria, or only to individual authorities who meet them?

 Apply nationally

  Apply to individual authorities only

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

Question 18(d):
Are there any other issues we should consider in developing a framework for this additional 
fee increase?

Comments:

Fees should reflect the amount of time and resources needed to process different 
applications.

Section 7: Other issues

Page 41



Question 19: 
Having regard to the measures we have already identified in the housing White Paper, are 
there any other actions that could increase build out rates?

 Yes

 No

 Not sure / don’t know

Comments:

The Government must consider how it can prevent high volume housebuilders from land 
banking, which slows built out rates. More could be done to encourage the smaller 
housebuilders back into the market, but not at the expense of developer contributions or 
affordable housing provision.

Page 42



Annual Report on the Treasury Management Service and Actual Prudential 
Indicators for 2016/17

Summary

Report to advise members of the Treasury Management Service 
performance and to illustrate the compliance with the Prudential Indicators 
for 2016/17.

Portfolio - Finance
Date signed off: 30 October 2017

Wards Affected All

Recommendation 

The Executive is asked to RESOLVE

(i) to note the report on Treasury Management including compliance 
with the 2016/17 Prudential Indicators;

(ii) that Treasury Consultants be appointed by the Executive Head of 
Finance in consultation with the Chief Executive to negotiate 
borrowing opportunities with other providers with the cost being 
funded from interest savings.  

The Executive is asked to RECOMMEND to Full Council to NOTE 
compliance with the Prudential Indicators for 2016/17.

1. Resource Implications

1.1 None directly as a result of this paper, but the Council is heavily dependant on 
investment income to support its current revenue expenditure. The table below 
shows investment income from treasury activities (excluding Iceland) from 
2011/12 to 2016/17.

1.2

 Year
Investment 
income from 
treasury 
activities

Increase/decrease 
compared to 
previous year

 £'000 £0 %
2011/12 215 -49 -18.60%
2012/13 300 85 39.50%
2013/14 208 -92 -42.80%
2014/15 273 35 17.00%
2015/16 515 242 88.80%
2016/17 488 -27 -9.90%

Page 43

Agenda Item 8. 



1.3 Although treasury income returns decreased slightly in 2016/17 this was 
against a backdrop of a continuing low interest rate environment nationally 
coupled with the redemption of investments to repay borrowing. .

2. Key Issues

2.1 The Council’s treasury management activity is underpinned by CIPFA’s Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management (“the Code”), which requires authorities to 
produce annually Prudential Indicators and a Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement on the likely financing and investment activity. The Code also 
recommends that members are informed of treasury management activities at 
least twice a year. This report informs members of the outcome of treasury 
activities in the last year and a further report later in the year will report on the 
first 6 months.   

2.2 Treasury management is defined as: “The management of the local authority’s 
investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market 
transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; 
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.” 

2.3 The Council’s treasury activity, in common with all other investors, is subject to 
risks arising from the strength of financial markets and changing interest rates. 
Although overall responsibility for Treasury Management does rest with the 
Council, the Council has engaged professional advisors to advise them and 
therefore to manage and minimise these risks. That said no treasury 
management activity is without risk and it is the balancing of these risks against 
returns that forms a key part of the treasury strategy. 

2.4 This report is the annual report for the 2016/17 financial year.  It includes both a 
summary of treasury management performance during the year as well 
demonstrating compliance with the 2016/17 Prudential Indicators.

2.5 This report fulfils the Council’s legal obligation under the Local Government Act 
2003 to have regard to both the CIPFA Code and the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) Investment Guidance, and the 
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities.

2.6 This is the second year that the Council borrowed externally to purchase 
property and the impact of this is included within this report.

3. Options

3.1 The Executive can endorse, amend or reject the recommendations made. 

4. Proposals

4.1 It is PROPOSED that the Executive: 

Page 44



(i) NOTE the report on Treasury Management including compliance with 
the 2016/17 Prudential Indicators;

(ii) RESOLVE that Treasury Consultants be appointed by the Executive 
Head of Finance in consultation with the Chief Executive to negotiate 
borrowing opportunities with other providers with the cost being funded 
from interest savings..  

(iii) RECOMMEND to Full Council to NOTE compliance with the Prudential 
Indicators for 2016/17;

5. Supporting Information

Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17

5.1 The Council approved the 2016/17 Treasury Management Strategy, which 
includes the investment strategy, at its meeting on the 9th February 2016. All 
treasury management activity complied with the approved treasury 
management strategy, the CIPFA Code of Practice and the relevant legislative 
provisions.  Further amendments to the strategy to increase the Council’s 
borrowing limit were approved on 24th August 2016 and 9th November 2016.
 
Investment Strategy 2016/17

5.2 The approved investment strategy for 2016/17 adopted a view to investment 
that sought to balance risk against return. It maintained a policy, on the advice 
of our treasury advisors Arlingclose, of diversifying investments including longer 
term investment funds which give a good return but can be more volatile. 
 

5.3 The Council continued to use a limited range of UK banks and building 
societies with investments being placed generally for short periods only. This 
was not only because of the poor rates offered but also the risk of bail in due to 
changes in legislation in 2016. A bail-in is rescuing a financial institution on the 
brink of failure by making its creditors and depositors take a loss on their 
holdings. A bail-in is the opposite of a bail-out, which involves the rescue of a 
financial institution by external parties, typically governments using taxpayers’ 
money.

Borrowing Strategy 2016/17

5.4 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR, or underlying need to 
borrow) as at 31st March 2017 was £140.2m (£18.1m at 31 March 2016). 

5.5 The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required, with 
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change 
being a secondary objective. However, new borrowing entered in to this year 
has been at variable rates and for short term.

Page 45



Treasury Advisors

5.6 The Council uses Arlingclose Limited as its treasury management advisors to 
provide advice on all aspects of treasury management including interest rate 
forecasts, counterparty lists and management advice. They have provided an 
Economic Review, counterparty update and market data by way of background 
information and this is included in Annex C.

Borrowing and Investment Activity in 2016/17

Borrowing Activity 2016/17

5.7 At 31/03/2017 the Authority’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes as 
measured by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) was £140.2m, while 
usable reserves and working capital which are the underlying resources 
available for investment were £21.4m on an accruals basis. 
 

5.8 The Authority’s chief objective when borrowing has been to strike an 
appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs and 
achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required, with 
flexibility to renegotiate loans should the Authority’s long-term plans change 
being a secondary objective.  

5.9 At 31/03/2017, the Authority had £119m (£17.9m at 31 March 2016) of 
borrowing and £11.5m (£27.7m at 31 March 2016) of treasury investments. The 
reason for the sharp change in borrowing and investments over the year was 
twofold. Firstly the Council borrowed signifincatly to acquire investment 
property, in particular the Camberley shopping centre, and secondly treasury 
investments were sold in order to repay borrowing thereby reducing risk. The 
Authority’s current strategy is to maintain borrowing and investments below 
their underlying levels, referred to as internal borrowing, subject to holding a 
minimum short-term investment balance of £5m.  

5.10 The Authority is predicted to have an increasing CFR over the next 3 years due 
to the capital programme of up to £45m due to future property acquisitions.

5.11 During the year the Council entered in to £101.5m of new short term borrowing. 
The details are given in the table below:

31.03.16 2016/17 31.03.17 31.03.17
Balance Movement Balance Rate

£m £m £m %
Public Works Loan Board -16.5 0.1 -16.4 2.9
Local authorities (long term) -1.5 0.4 -1.1 0.0
Local authorities (short term) - -101.5 -101.5 0.3
Total Borrowing -18.0 -101.0 -119.0 1.1

Page 46



Investment Activity 2016/17

5.12 The Authority held invested funds, representing income received in advance of 
expenditure plus balances and reserves held.  During 2016/17 the Authority’s 
investment balances have ranged between £10million and £34million. 
Investment balances decreased to £10million at 31st March 2017 as funds were 
used to repay short term borrowing. The Guidance on Local Government 
Investments in England gives priority to security and liquidity and the Authority’s 
aim is to achieve a yield commensurate with these principles. 

5.13 The table below shows a summary of the investment activity for 2016/17:

Investment Counterparty Ba
la

nc
e 

on
 1

/4
/1

6

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

 M
ad

e

M
at

ur
iti

es
/In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 S

ol
d

Ba
la

nc
e 

on
 3

1/
3/

17

Av
er

ag
e 

R
at

e 
at

 3
1s

t M
ar

ch

£000s £000s £000s £000s %
UK Central Govenrment
 - Short Term 0 438 -438 0 0.15
 - Long Term 0 0 0 0 -

UK Local Authorities
 - Short Term 5,500 2,000 -5,500 2,000 0.79
 - Long Term 2,000 0 0 2,000 1.30
Banks, Building Societies & Other 
Organisations
 - Short Term 5,259 74,280 -74,105 5,434 0.55
 - Long Term 0 0 0 0 -

AAA-rated Money Market Funds
 - Short Term Cash Equivalents 6,973 36,934 -43,906 0 0.49
 - Long Term 7,962 0 -5,908 2,054 3.64

Total Investments 27,693 113,652 -129,857 11,488

   
5.14 Security of capital has remained the Authority’s main investment objective. This 

has been maintained by following the Authority’s counterparty policy as set out 
in its Treasury Management Strategy Statement for 2016/17. 

5.15 Counterparty credit quality was assessed and monitored by our advisors with 
reference to credit ratings (the Authority’s minimum long-term counterparty 
rating is A- across rating agencies Fitch, S&P and Moody’s). 

5.16 Investments during the year included:

- Deposits with the Debt Management Office
- Deposits with Other Local Authorities
- Investments in AAA-rated constant and variable net asset value Money 

Market Funds

Page 47



- Call accounts and deposits with Banks and Building Societies in the UK

5.17 The Council’s current accounts, together with a Special Interest Bearing 
Account are held with NatWest plc who does not currently meet the above 
credit rating criteria.  The Council will treat NatWest plc as “high credit quality” 
for the purpose of making investments that can be withdrawn on the next 
working day.

Credit Risk

5.18 Counterparty credit quality as measured by credit ratings is summarised below:

Date
Value Weighted 
Average – Credit 

Risk Score

Value Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating

Time Weighted 
Average – Credit 

Risk Score

Time Weighted 
Average – 

Credit Rating

31/03/2015 3.74 AA- 2.79 AA
30/06/2015 4.03 AA- 2.72 AA
30/09/2015 4.07 AA- 2.54 AA
31/12/2015 4.75 A+ 2.92 AA
31/03/2016 4.26 AA- 2.35 AA
31/03/2017 4.99 A+ 3.06 AA

Scoring: 
-Value weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to 
the size of the deposit
-Time weighted average reflects the credit quality of investments according to 
the maturity of the deposit
-AAA = highest credit quality = 1
- D = lowest credit quality = 26

-Aim = A- or higher credit rating, with a score of 7 or lower, to reflect current 
investment approach with main focus on security

Budgeted Income and Outturn

5.19 The average cash balances were £27m during the year.  The Authority’s best 
performing investments in 2016/17 were its £7m of externally managed pooled 
(bond, equity and property) funds.  These generated an average total return of 
3.64%, comprising £0.3m income return used to support services in year.  
Because these funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for 
withdrawal after notice period, their performance and continued suitability in 
meeting the Authority’s investment objectives is regularly reviewed.  In light of 
their strong performance and the Authority’s latest cash flow forecasts, 
investment in the property fund has been maintained for the 2017/18 financial 
year.
   

Page 48



5.20 The Authority’s budgeted investment income for the year was £0.3m.  The 
Authority’s investment outturn for the year was £0.5m. 

Externally Managed Funds

5.21 The Authority disposed of its investments in strategic bond and equity funds but 
maintained its investment in property funds. The property fund is operated on a 
variable net asset value (VNAV) basis offer diversification of investment risk, 
coupled with the services of a professional fund manager; it also offers 
enhanced returns over the longer term but are more volatile in the short-term. 
All of the Authority’s pooled fund investments are in the respective fund’s 
distributing share class which pay out the income generated.

5.22 Although money can be redeemed from the property fund at short notice, the 
Authority’s intention is to hold them for the medium-term.  Its performance and 
suitability in meeting the Authority’s investment objectives are monitored 
regularly and discussed with Arlingclose. 

Update on Investments with Icelandic Banks

5.23 The Council originally had £4m at risk in Iceland due to the collapse of the 
Icelandic banks in 2008. Over the intervening years this money was repaid in 
instalments however at the 31st March 2016 a balance of ISK135bn, which 
represented the remainder of the Council’s claim against Glitnir Bank, remained 
due to Icelandic currency controls. In June 2016 the Icelandic Government 
announced that they would allow foreign deposits in ISK to be exchanged for 
one last time in a currency auction. If this opportunity was not taken then the 
money could remain trapped for several years and indeed be subject to a steep 
exit payment. On the advice of the Council’s professional advisors the decision 
was taken to take advantage of this offer and the final balance held in Iceland 
was repaid as Euro712k. 

5.24 As a consequence of this there is no more money held in Iceland and the 
Council has received slightly more than the £4m originally deposited.

Compliance with Prudential indicators

5.25 The Council can confirm that it has complied with its Prudential Indicators for 
2016/17, which were approved on 9th February 2016 by Full Council as part of 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy Statement. Further amendments 
to the strategy to increase the Council’s borrowing limit were approved on 24th 
August 2016 and 9th November 2016. Full details are included in Annex C. 

5.26 In compliance with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice this report 
provides members with a summary report of the treasury management activity 
during 2016/17. None of the Prudential Indicators have been breached and a 
prudent approach has been taking in relation to investment activity with priority 
being given to security and liquidity over yield.

Page 49



Borrowing Strategy for 2017/18

5.27 On the advice of the Council’s Treasury advisors the Council has continued to 
borrow short term from other public bodies rather than longer term from the 
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) in order to take advantage of low interest 
rates. It is our advisors view that rates are unlikely to increase significantly 
within the next 2 years but that the Council should seek to fix for the longer 
term so to minimise interest rate risk. 

5.28 Although the PWLB offers easy access to funds it does not necessarily offer the 
lowest rates for longer term borrowing and rates can only be fixed on the day 
they are borrowed. Arling Close have advised us that potentially the market is 
able to offer better rates as Councils are viewed favourably and that they are in 
the market to offer a fixed rate borrowing option for a time in the future. This 
would mean that the Council would be able to continue to take advantage of 
low short term rates but be able to minimime the risk of rate rises in the future.  
Although going to market will have an initial cost this will be more than 
recovered in interest savings over the life of the loan. It is therefore proposed 
that consultants be engaged to go to market with the cost of the exercise 
coming out of interest savings    

6. Corporate Objectives And Key Priorities

6.1 This report demonstrates how treasury management supports Key priority 2.

7. Policy Framework

7.1 The 2016/17 Annual Investment Strategy together with the Treasury 
Management Strategy was approved by Full Council on the 9th February 2016. 
These set out the parameters under which Treasury Management operates 
including the Prudential Indicators.

7.2 The Council fully complies with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice 
on Treasury Management. The relevant criteria and constraints incorporated 
into the Treasury Management Policy Statement are:

 New borrowing is contained within the limits approved by the Council, in 
accordance with the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities, and the Council’s prudential indicators.

 Investments are made in accordance with the CLG guidance on Local 
Authority Investments, on the basis of Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & 
Poors credit ratings and as detailed in the Treasury Management Policy 
statement and approved schedules and practices.

 Sufficient funds are available to meet the Council’s estimated outgoings for 
any day.

 Investment objectives are to maximise the return to the Council, subject to 
the overriding need to protect the capital sum.

Page 50



8. Legal Issues

8.1 The Council is required to comply with the Prudential code as laid down by 
Government.

9. Risk Management 

9.1 The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk 
to be the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management 
activities will be measured.  The key treasury risks being managed are:

 credit risk,
 liquidity risk,
 interest rate risk,
 refinancing risk, and
 operational risk.

The techniques employed to manage these risks are covered in detail in the 
Council’s Treasury Management Practices, and include:

 robust counterparty monitoring and selection criteria,
 prudent cash flow forecasting,
 a range of exposure limits and indicators, and
 procedures designed to prevent fraud and error.

9.2 The Council’s primary objectives for the management of its investments are to 
give priority to the security and liquidity of its funds before seeking the best rate 
of return.  

9.3 The limits applied in respect of counterparties and investments are the overall 
limits approved by Council in the annual Treasury Management Strategy.   
However from time to time these may be tightened temporarily by the Executive 
Head of Finance in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance to reflect 
increased uncertainty and increase in perceived risk in financial institutions and 
the economy.  This will usually be at the cost of lower returns.

9.4 It should be noted that the investments ratings provided by credit ratings 
agencies are only a guide and do not give 100% security.  There is always a 
risk that an institution may be unable to repay its loans whatever the credit 
rating

9.5 The Council measures its exposures to treasury management risks using a 
range of indicators as recommended by the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management.  

Page 51



Annexes Annex A – Investments as at 31st March 2017
Annex B -  Compliance with Prudential Indicators 
Annex C – Economic and other background 
information from Arlingclose Limited. 

Background Papers Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities

Author/Contact Details Nahidah Cuthbert
Nahidah.cuthbert@surreyheath.gov.uk

Head Of Service Kelvin Menon
Kelvin.Menon@surreyheath.gov.uk

Consultations, Implications And Issues Addressed 
Resources Required Consulted
Revenue 
Capital
Human Resources
Asset Management
IT 

Other Issues Required Consulted
Corporate Objectives & Key Priorities 
Policy Framework 
Legal
Governance
Sustainability 
Risk Management
Equalities Impact Assessment
Community Safety
Human Rights
Consultation
P R & Marketing
Review Date:
Version: 

Page 52



Annex A

Investments Notes
Maturity 

Date
Interest 
Rate % Principal

£
Cash and Cash Equivalents
NatWest Business Reserve Account On call 0.01 2,295,134
NatWest Central Account 0.01 1,092,010

Coventry Building Society 28-Apr-17 0.37 2,046,968
Lancashire County Council 28-Apr-17 0.35 2,000,000

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,434,112

Long Term Investments

Loans and Receivables
Glasgow City Council 30-Oct-18 1.30 2,000,000

Available for Sale 
CCLA Property Fund Long term 3.40 2,053,609

Total Long Term Investments 4,053,609

Total Investments 11,487,721

Treasury Related Investment Balances as at 31st March 2017

Page 53



Annex B

Compliance with Prudential Indicators

The Authority confirms compliance with its Prudential Indicators for 2016/17, which 
were set in February 2016 then subsequently amended in August 2016 and 
November 2016. 

Treasury Management Indicators

The Authority measures and manages its exposures to treasury management risks 
using the following indicators.

Interest Rate Exposures: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s exposure to 
interest rate risk.  The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures, 
expressed as the amount of net principal borrowed will be:

2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Upper limit on fixed interest rate 
exposure £167m £190m £190m

Actual £0.5m
Upper limit on variable interest rate 
exposure £0 £0 £0

Actual £0.04m

Fixed rate investments and borrowings are those where the rate of interest is fixed 
for the whole financial year.  Instruments that mature during the financial year are 
classed as variable rate.  

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the Authority’s 
exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the maturity structure of 
fixed rate borrowing will be:

Upper Lower Actual
Under 12 months 100% 0% 86%
12 months and within 24 months 100% 0% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 100% 0% 2%
5 years and within 10 years 100% 0% 1%
10 years and within 20 years 100% 0% 2%
20 years and within  30 years 100% 0% 2%
30 years and within 40 years 100% 0% 3%
Over 40 years 100% 0% 4%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year.  The maturity date of 
borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand repayment.  

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The purpose of this 
indicator is to control the Authority’s exposure to the risk of incurring losses by 

Page 54



Annex B

seeking early repayment of its investments.  The limits on the total principal sum 
invested to final maturities beyond the period end will be:

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18
Limit on principal invested beyond year 
end £15m £15m £15m

Actual £2m

Security: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to credit 
risk by monitoring the value-weighted average [credit rating] or [credit score] of its 
investment portfolio.  This is calculated by applying a score to each investment 
(AAA=1, AA+=2, etc.) and taking the arithmetic average, weighted by the size of 
each investment.

Target Actual
Portfolio average credit rating A A+

Liquidity: The Authority has adopted a voluntary measure of its exposure to liquidity 
risk by monitoring the amount of cash available to meet unexpected payments within 
a rolling three month period, without additional borrowing.  The Authority also has the 
option to borrow on a daily basis on the open market.

Target Actual
Total cash available within 3 months £5m £7m

Page 55



Annex B

Prudential Indicators 2016/17

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Authority to have regard to CIPFA’s 
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) when 
determining how much money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the 
Prudential Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital investment 
plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable and that treasury 
management decisions are taken in accordance with good professional practice. To 
demonstrate that the Authority has fulfilled these objectives, the Prudential Code 
sets out the following indicators that must be set and monitored each year.

Estimates of Capital Expenditure: The Authority’s planned capital expenditure and 
financing may be summarised as follows:

 

Capital Expenditure and 
Financing

2016/17 
Actual

2016/17 
Estimate

2017/18 
Estimate

£m £m £m
Capital Program 123.0 122.3 3.9
Total Expenditure 123.0 122.3 3.9
Capital Receipts 0.2 0.5 0.1
Government Grants 0.5 0.6 0.6
Reserves 0.1 0.3
Revenue - 0.0
Borrowing 122.1 120.9
Total Financing 0.0 - 3.2  

Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement: The Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR) measures the Authority’s underlying need to borrow for a capital 
purpose. 

31.03.17 
Actual
£m

31.03.17 
Estimate
£m

31.03.18 
Estimate
£m

Capital Financing Requirement 140 139 141

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to ensure that over 
the medium term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the Authority should ensure 
that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of capital financing 
requirement in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital 
financing requirement for the current and next two financial years. This is a key 

Page 56



Annex B

indicator of prudence.

Debt
31.03.17 
Actual

31.03.17 
Estimate

31.03.18 
Estimate

£m £m £m
Borrowing 119 121 135 
Capital Financing 
Requirement 140 139 141 
Headroom 21 18 6 

The figures above could increase significantly if the council decides to invest in more 
property. 

The actual debt levels are monitored against the Operational Boundary and 
Authorised Limit for External Debt, below. 

Operational Boundary for External Debt: The operational boundary is based on 
the Authority’s estimate of most likely, i.e. prudent, but not worst case scenario for 
external debt. 

Operational Boundary 2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

Borrowing 157 157 157
Total Debt 157 157 157

Authorised Limit for External Debt: The authorised limit is the affordable 
borrowing limit determined in compliance with the Local Government Act 2003.  It is 
the maximum amount of debt that the Authority can legally owe.  The authorised limit 
provides headroom over and above the operational boundary for unusual cash 
movements.

Authorised Limit 2016/17
£m

2017/18
£m

2018/19
£m

Borrowing 167 167 167
Total Debt 167 167 167

Should the Council decide to borrow to invest in property members would be asked 
to increase the limits above at that time.

Page 57



Annex B

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: This is an indicator of 
affordability and highlights the revenue implications of existing and proposed capital 
expenditure by identifying the proportion of the revenue budget required to meet 
financing costs, net of investment income.

Ratio of Financing 
Costs to Net 
Revenue Stream

2016/17 
Actual
%

2016/17 
Estimate
%

2017/18 
Estimate
%

General Fund 0.1 -16 -39

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: This is an indicator of 
affordability that shows the impact of capital investment decisions on Council Tax 
levels. The incremental impact is the difference between the total revenue budget 
requirement of the current approved capital programme and the revenue budget 
requirement arising from the capital programme proposed earlier in this report.

Incremental Impact of Capital 
Investment Decisions

2015/16 
Estimate
£

2016/17 
Estimate
£

2017/18 
Estimate
£

General Fund - increase in 
annual Band D Council Tax 8.16 11.46 6.63

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code: 
The Council approved the adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code at its 
meeting on 9th February 2016.

Page 58



Annex C

ECONOMIC REVIEW, COUTERPARTY UPDATE AND MARKET DATA   
PROVIDED BY ARLINGCLOSE LIMITED

Economic Review

As we entered 2016, there was a significant uncertainty about the outlook for 
global growth.  The slowdown in the Chinese economy and the knock-on 
effects for both trading partners and commodity prices, the uncertainty over the 
outcome of the US presidential election (no clear party or candidate being 
identified as an outright winner) and the impending referendum on the UK’s 
future relationship with the EU, all resulted in nervousness and a shaky start for 
markets. 

Data released in the April-June quarter showed UK GDP at 2% year/year to 
March 2016 and annual inflation at 0.3% in May.  Core inflation remained 
subdued as a consequence of weak global price pressures, past movements in 
sterling and restrained domestic price growth.  Internationally, a modest pace of 
growth in the UK’s main trading partners remained the most likely prospect.
    
Fluctuations in the opinion polls on the EU referendum prompted pronounced 
volatility in exchange rates, gilts, corporate bonds and equities as the result 
became increasingly uncertain.  Immediately prior to the result, financial market 
sentiment shifted significantly in favour of a Remain outcome, a shift swiftly 
reversed as the results came in.  The vote to leave the EU sent shockwaves 
through the domestic, European and global political spectrum, the most 
immediate impact being the resignation of Prime Minister David Cameron.

Between 23rd June and 1st July the sterling exchange rate index fell by 9% and 
short-term volatility of sterling against the dollar increased significantly.  
Worldwide, markets reacted very negatively with a big initial fall in equity prices.  
Government bond yields also fell sharply by 20-30 bp across all maturities (i.e. 
prices rose) as investors sought safe haven from riskier assets. The 10-year 
benchmark gilt yield fell from 1.37% to 0.86%. 

Yet, a week on from the result the overall market reaction, although significant, 
was less severe than some had feared. The 5-year CDS for the UK (the cost of 
insuring against a sovereign default) rose from 33.5 basis points to 38.4 basis 
points. The FTSE All Share index, having fallen sharply by 7% from 3,481 
points on 23rd June to 3,237 after the result, had subsequently risen to 3,515 
by the end of the month.
 
The Bank of England sought to reassure markets and investors. Governor Mark 
Carney’s speeches on 24th and 30th June in response to the referendum result 
stressed that the Bank was ready to support money market liquidity and raised 
the likelihood of a cut in policy rates ‘in the summer’.  The door was also left 
open for an increase in the Bank’s asset purchase facility (QE).  The Governor 
noted that the Bank would weigh the downside risks to growth against the 
upside risks to inflation from fall in the value of sterling.

Counterparty Update

Page 59



Annex C

Various indicators of credit risk reacted negatively to the result of the 
referendum on the UK’s membership of the European Union.  UK bank credit 
default swaps saw a modest rise but bank share prices fell sharply, on average 
by 20%, with UK-focused banks experiencing the largest falls. Non-UK bank 
share prices were not immune although the fall in their share prices was less 
pronounced.  
Fitch downgraded the UK’s sovereign rating by one notch to AA from AA+, and 
Standard & Poor’s downgraded its corresponding rating by two notches to AA 
from AAA. Fitch, S&P and Moody’s have a negative outlook on the UK. S&P 
took similar actions on rail company bonds guaranteed by the UK Government. 

Moody’s affirmed the ratings of nine UK banks and building societies and 
revised the outlook to negative for those banks and building societies that it 
perceived to be exposed to a more challenging operating environment arising 
from the ‘leave’ outcome. 

There was no immediate change to Arlingclose’s credit advice on UK banks 
and building societies as a result of the referendum result. Our advisor believes 
there is a risk that the uncertainty over the UK’s future trading prospects will 
bring forward the timing of the next UK recession. In the coming weeks and 
months Arlingclose will therefore review all UK based institutions, and it is likely 
that, over time, will advise shortening durations on those institutions considered 
to be most affected.

Following the UK’s vote to leave the European Union, the economic outlook for 
the UK has immeasurably altered. It will to a large extent be dependent on the 
nature of the future relationship negotiated with the EU, particularly in 
relationship to trade.  The negotiations crucially hinge on domestic politics 
which, at the end of the June quarter, were unsettled themselves. 

The domestic outlook is uncertain, but likely to be substantially weaker in the 
short term than previously forecast. Arlingclose has changed its central case for 
the path of Bank Rate over the next three years. Arlingclose believes any 
currency-driven inflationary pressure will be looked through by Bank of England 
policymakers. The likely path for Bank Rate is downwards and the central case 
is 0.25%, but there is a 40% possibility of that the rate is cut to zero.

In addition, Arlingclose believes that the Government and the Bank of England 
have both the tools and the willingness to use them to prevent any immediate 
market-wide problems leading to bank insolvencies. The cautious approach to 
credit advice means that the banks currently on the Authority’s counterparty list 
have sufficient equity buffers to deal with any localised problems in the short 
term.

Page 60



Annex C

Money Market Data and PWLB Rates 

The average, low and high rates correspond to the rates during the financial 
year rather than those in the tables below. Please note that the PWLB rates 
below are Standard Rates. Authorities eligible for the Certainty Rate can borrow 
at a 0.20% reduction.

Table 1: Bank Rate, Money Market Rates

Date Bank 
Rate

O/N 
LIBID

7-day 
LIBID

1-
month
LIBID

3-
month 
LIBID

6-
month 
LIBID

12-
month 
LIBID

2-yr 
SWAP 
Bid

3-yr 
SWAP 
Bid

5-yr 
SWAP 
Bid

01/4/2016 0.50 0.36 0.36 0.39 0.46 0.61 0.88 0.78 0.83 0.98
30/4/2016 0.50 0.36 0.36 0.38 0.47 0.62 0.90 0.86 0.95 1.13
31/5/2016 0.50 0.35 0.37 0.39 0.46 0.61 0.89 0.82 0.92 1.09
30/6/2016 0.50 0.35 0.36 0.39 0.43 0.55 0.80 0.49 0.49 0.60

Average 0.50 0.36 0.36 0.38 0.46 0.60 0.86 0.77 0.83 0.98
Maximum 0.50 0.36 0.37 0.39 0.47 0.62 0.90 0.88 0.99 1.20
Minimum 0.50 0.35 0.36 0.37 0.40 0.50 0.73 0.49 0.49 0.58
Spread -- 0.01 0.01 0.02 0.07 0.12 0.17 0.39 0.50 0.62

Table 2: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Maturity Loans (Standard Rate)
 
Change 
Date

Notice 
No

1 
year

4½-5 
yrs

9½-10 
yrs

19½-
20 yrs

29½-
30 yrs

39½-
40 yrs

49½-50 
yrs

01/4/2016 125/16 1.33 1.82 2.51 3.24 3.33 3.19 3.15
30/4/2016 165/16 1.37 1.95 2.65 3.34 3.40 3.25 3.21
31/5/2016 205/16 1.36 1.93 2.56 3.22 3.27 3.11 3.07
30/6/2016 249/16 1.17 1.48 2.09 2.79 2.82 2.61 2.57

Low 1.09 1.41 2.05 2.76 2.79 2.59 2.56
Average 1.31 1.79 2.46 3.17 3.23 3.07 3.03
High 1.40 2.00 2.71 3.40 3.46 3.31 3.28

Table 3: PWLB Borrowing Rates – Fixed Rate, Equal Instalment of Principal 
(EIP) Loans (Standard Rate)

Change 
Date

Notice 
No

4½-5 
yrs

9½-10 
yrs

19½-20 
yrs

29½-30 
yrs

39½-40 
yrs

49½-50 
yrs

01/4/2016 125/16 1.50 1.86 2.54 2.99 3.25 3.3
4

30/4/2016 165/16 1.59 1.99 2.68 3.11 3.34 3.42
31/5/2016 205/16 1.58 1.97 2.58 2.99 3.23 3.30
30/6/2016 249/16 1.24 1.51 2.11 2.55 2.79 2.86

Low 1.24 1.51 2.11 2.55 2.79 2.86
Average 1.48 1.83 2.48 2.91 3.15 3.23
High 1.59 1.99 2.68 3.11 3.34 3.42

Page 61



Annex C

Table 4: PWLB Variable Rates 
1-M 
Rate

3-M 
Rate

6-M 
Rate

1-M 
Rate

3-M 
Rate

6-M 
Rate

Pre-
CSR

Pre-
CSR

Pre-
CSR

Post-
CSR

Post-
CSR

Post-
CSR

1/4/2016 0.61 0.65 0.67 1.51 1.55 1.57
30/4/2016 0.61 0.65 0.67 1.51 1.55 1.57
31/5/2016 0.65 0.66 0.70 1.55 1.56 1.60
30/6/2016 0.64 0.62 0.62 1.54 1.52 1.52

Low 1.51 1.52 1.52 0.61 0.62 0.62
Average 1.53 1.55 1.57 0.63 0.65 0.67
High 1.55 1.56 1.60 0.65 0.66 0.70

Page 62



EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RECOMMENDATION 

The Executive is advised to RESOLVE that, under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the ground that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as 
set out below:

Item Paragraph(s)

10 3
11 3

Page 63

Agenda Item 9. 



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 10. 
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

Agenda Item 11. 
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	5. Mid-Year Performance Report
	Mid Year Performance report 2017-18 Annex

	6. Allotment Sand and Gravel Charity – Funding Request – Playground at Princess Royal Barracks, Alma Gardens, Deepcut
	7. Response to the DCLG consultation on Planning for the Right Homes in the Right Places
	Response to the DCLG consulttion Planning for the Houses in the Right Places Annex

	8. Annual Report on the Treasury Management Service and Actual Prudential Indicators for 2016/17
	9. Exclusion of Press and Public
	10. Performance of the Major Property Acquisitions
	11. Review of Exempt Items

